
Table of Contents

 
Agenda 2
May 7, 2015

DRAFT May 7, 2015 MAPC Minutes 4
SUB2015-00005

SUB2015 05 -MAPC Staff Rpt -Slades Second ADD 40
SUB2015-00006

SUB2015 06 -MAPC Staff Rpt -Harbor Isle 4th ADD 44
SUB2015-00010

SUB2015 10 -MAPC Staff Rpt -Spring Acres Estates
ADD 47

SUB2015-00016
SUB2015 16 -MAPC Staff Rpt -Monarch Landing
Commercial ADD 51

VAC2015-00018
VAC2015 18 -MAPC Staff Rpt 54

VAC2015-00019
VAC2015 19 -MAPC Staff Rpt 57

VAC2015-00020
VAC2015 20 -MAPC Staff Rpt 60

VAC2015-00021
VAC2015 21 -MAPC Staff Rpt 64

CON2015-00020
CON2015-00020 Staff Report and Site Plans, etc 67

1



WICHITA-SEDGWICK COUNTY 
METROPOLITAN AREA PLANNING COMMISSION AGENDA 

Thursday, June 18, 2015 

Page 1 of 2 

 
The regular meeting of the Wichita-Sedgwick County Metropolitan Area Planning Commission will be 
held on Thursday, June 18, 2015, beginning at 1:30 PM in the Planning Department Conference Room 
City Hall - 10th Floor, 455 N. Main Street, Wichita, Kansas. If you have any questions regarding the 
meeting or items on this agenda, please call the Wichita-Sedgwick County Metropolitan Area 
Planning Department at 316.268.4421. 

1. Approval of the prior MAPC meeting minutes: 
Meeting Date: May 7, 2015 

2. CONSIDERATION OF SUBDIVISION COMMITTEE RECOMMENDATIONS 
Items may be taken in one motion unless there are questions or comments. 
SUBDIVISION CASE DETAILS 

2-1. SUB2015-00005: One-Step Final Plat  – SLADE’S SECOND ADDITION, located 
south of 55th Street South, east of Meridian.  

Committee Action: APPROVED 5-0 
Surveyor: Alpha Land Surveys, Inc. 
Acreage: 1.98 
Total Lots: 1 

2-2. SUB2015-00006: Revised One-Step Final Plat – HARBOR ISLE 4TH ADDITION, 
located east side of Meridian, north of 45th Street North (extended).  

Committee Action: APPROVED 5-0 
Surveyor: Baughman Company, P.A. 
Acreage: 4.64 
Total Lots: 2 

2-3. SUB2015-00010: Final Plat – SPRING ACRES ESTATES ADDITION, located on 
the south side of 21st Street North, on the west side of 327th Street West.  

Committee Action: APPROVED 5-0 
Surveyor: Baughman Company, P.A. 
Acreage: 45.65 
Total Lots: 15 

2-4. SUB2015-00016: Final Plat – MONARCH LANDING COMMERCIAL 
ADDITION, located on the northwest corner of 21st Street North and 159th Street East.  

Committee Action: APPROVED 5-0 
Surveyor: Baughman Company, P.A. 
Acreage: 18.12 
Total Lots: 3 

3. PUBLIC HEARING – VACATION ITEMS 
ADVERTISED TO BE HEARD NO EARLIER THAN 1:30 PM 
Items may be taken in one motion unless there are questions or comments.  
Complete legal descriptions are available for public inspection at the Metropolitan Area Planning Department – 
10th Floor, City Hall, 455 N. Main Street, Wichita, Kansas 

2



Page 2 of 2 

3-1. VAC2015-00018: City request to vacate a portion of a platted utility easement on 
property, generally located midway between Webb and Greenwich Roads, south of 
Harry Street, west of Smithmoor Street on the south end of Countryside Circle.  

Committee Action: APPROVED 5-0 

3-2. VAC2015-00019: City request to vacate a platted alley, generally located between 
Emporia - 3rd Street - St Francis -2nd Street.  

Committee Action: APPROVED 5-0 

3-3. VAC2015-00020: City request to vacate a portion of platted access control, on 
property generally located midway between 13th and 21st Street North on the west side 
of 159th Street East.  

Committee Action: APPROVED 5-0 

3-4. VAC2015-00021: City request to vacate a platted easement, on property located on 
the northeast corner of Webb Road and Kellogg Street.  

Committee Action: APPROVED 5-0 

PUBLIC HEARINGS 
ADVERTISED TO BE HEARD NO EARLIER THAN 1:30 PM 

4. Case No.: CON2015-00020  
Request: City Conditional Use request for a 100-foot FM radio tower on LC 

Limited Commercial zoned property.  
General Location: Southeast corner of Hydraulic Avenue and 45th Street North. 
Presenting Planner: Bill Longnecker 
 

NON-PUBLIC HEARING ITEMS 
 

5. Other Matters/Adjournment 

John L. Schlegel, Secretary 
Wichita-Sedgwick County Metropolitan Area Planning Commission 

3



4



5



6



7



8



9



10



11



12



13



14



15



16



17



18



19



20



21



22



23



24



25



26



27



28



29



30



31



32



33



34



35



36



37



38



39



 

 

METROPOLITAN AREA PLANNING COMMISSION   AGENDA ITEM NO. 2-1 
          JUNE 18, 2015 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
CASE NUMBER: SUB2015-00005 – SLADE’S SECOND ADDITION   
   
OWNER/APPLICANT: Daniel R. and Deborah E. McClure, 1939 West 55th Street South, 

Wichita, KS 67217 
 
SURVEYOR/AGENT: Alpha Land Surveys. Inc., 216 West Second Avenue, Hutchinson, 

KS 67501  
 

LOCATION: East of Meridian, South of 55th Street South (District IV)  
 
SITE SIZE:   1.98 acres  
 
NUMBER OF LOTS 
 Residential:  1  
            Office:   
 Commercial:         
 Industrial:  __ 
 Total:   1 
 
MINIMUM LOT AREA: 1.98 acres   
 
CURRENT ZONING:  SF-5 Single-Family Residential  
 
PROPOSED ZONING:        Same 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
VICINITY MAP 
 

 

40



SUB2015-00005 -- Plat of SLADE’S SECOND ADDITION 
June 18, 2015 - Page 2 
 

 

NOTE:  This is an unplatted site located within the City of Wichita.   
 
STAFF COMMENTS:   
 
A. City of Wichita Public Works and Utilities Department has requested the applicant extend 

sanitary sewer (laterals).  In-lieu-of-assessment fees are due on water transmission and 
sewer main.  A No Protest Agreement for future extension of water is needed.  

 
B. The applicant shall contact City of Wichita Environmental Health to find out what tests may 

be necessary and what standards are to be met for approval of on-site water.  A 
memorandum shall be obtained specifying approval.   

 
C. If improvements are guaranteed by petition(s), a notarized certificate listing the petition(s) 

shall be submitted to the Planning Department for recording. 
 
D. County Surveying advises the benchmark description for the Site "SBM-1" needs a more 

defined location with respect to the proposed plat.  Said benchmark should also be shown 
graphically on the final plat. 

 
E. County Surveying recommends adding a reference to the west line of the east half of the 

northeast quarter of the northwest quarter of Section 30, Township 28 South, Range 1 east 
on the face of the plat. 

 
F. County Surveying recommends revising the legend on the final plat to match what is shown. 
 
G. County Surveying advises the recording data for the contingent street dedication over Lots 2 

and 3, Block A, "Slade's First Subdivision", Sedgwick County, Kansas (Film 442, Page 213) 
needs to be shown on the final plat. 

 
H. The applicant has platted a joint driveway easement and contingent street dedication which 

shall be relabeled as a “joint access easement and contingent dedication” and referenced in 
the plattor’s text as follows: “The contingent dedication shall become effective if the City of 
Wichita determines a need for such dedication.”   

 
I. The joint access easement and contingent dedication shall be established by separate 

instrument.  Initial construction responsibilities and future maintenance of the driveway within 
the easement should also be addressed by the text of the instrument. 

 
J.   Language in the plattor’s text regarding the proposed joint driveway and contingent street 

dedication benefiting Lots 2 and 3, Block A of Slade's First Subdivision should be removed, 
as future developments would also benefit from a future public street.  

 
K. City Stormwater Management has approved the drainage plan.  
 
L. Access controls need denoted on the face of the plat as referenced in the plattor’s text. 
 

41



SUB2015-00005 -- Plat of SLADE’S SECOND ADDITION 
June 18, 2015 - Page 3 
 

 

M. This property is within a zone identified by the City Engineer’s office as likely to have 
groundwater at some or all times within ten feet of the ground surface elevation.  Building 
with specially engineered foundations or with the lowest floor opening above groundwater is 
recommended and owners seeking building permits on this property will be similarly advised.  
More detailed information on recorded groundwater elevations in the vicinity of this property 
is available in the City Engineer’s office. 

 
N.  County Surveying and MAPD requests review of a pdf prior to mylar submittal.  Send to 

tricia.robello@sedgwick.gov and nstrahl@wichita.gov. 
 
O. The plattor’s text shall include reference to “a lot and a block” in the owner’s certificate. 
 
P. The plattor’s text shall include language that a drainage plan has been developed for the plat 

and that all drainage easements, rights-of-way, or reserves shall remain at established 
grades or as modified with the approval of the applicable City or County Engineer and 
unobstructed to allow for the conveyance of stormwater.  

 
Q. The applicant shall install or guarantee the installation of all utilities and facilities that are 

applicable and described in Article 8 of the MAPC Subdivision Regulations.  (Water service 
and fire hydrants required by Article 8 for fire protection shall be as per the direction and 
approval of the Chief of the Fire Department.) 

 
R. The Register of Deeds requires all names to be printed beneath the signatures on the plat 

and any associated documents.  
 
S. Prior to development of the plat, the applicant is advised to meet with the United States 

Postal Service Growth Management Coordinator (Phone:  316-946-4556) in order to receive 
mail delivery without delay, avoid unnecessary expense and determine the type of delivery 
and the tentative mailbox locations. 

 
T. The applicant is advised that various State and Federal requirements (specifically but not 

limited to the Army Corps of Engineers, Kanopolis Project Office, Route 1, Box 317, Valley 
Center, KS 67147) for the control of soil and wind erosion and the protection of wetlands may 
impact how this site can be developed.  It is the applicant’s responsibility to contact all 
appropriate agencies to determine any such requirements. 

 
U. The owner of the subdivision should note that any construction that results in earthwork 

activities that will disturb one acre or more of ground cover requires a Federal/State National 
Pollutant Discharge Elimination System Stormwater Discharge Permit from the Kansas 
Department of Health and Environment in Topeka.  Also, for projects located within the City 
of Wichita, erosion and sediment control devices must be used on ALL projects.  For projects 
outside of the City of Wichita, but within the Wichita metropolitan area, the owner should 
contact the appropriate governmental jurisdiction concerning erosion and sediment control 
device requirements. 

 
V. Perimeter closure computations shall be submitted with the final plat tracing. 
 

42



SUB2015-00005 -- Plat of SLADE’S SECOND ADDITION 
June 18, 2015 - Page 4 
 

 

  W. Westar Energy advises that Brian Ward, the Southwest Area Construction Services 
Representative, will be the contact for this project.  He can be reached at 316-261-6859 with 
questions and information or to start this project when the time comes.  Any and all relocation 
and removal of any existing equipment made necessary by this plat will be at the applicant’s 
expense. 

 
  X.  A compact disk (CD) should be provided, which will be used by the City and County GIS 

Departments, detailing the final plat in digital format in AutoCAD.  Please include the name of 
the plat on the disk.  If a disk is not provided, please send the information via e-mail to Kathy 
Wilson (e-mail address:  kwilson@wichita.gov).   

43



 
 
METROPOLITAN AREA PLANNING COMMISSION   AGENDA ITEM NO. 2-2 
          JUNE 18, 2015 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
CASE NUMBER: SUB2015-00006 – HARBOR ISLE 4TH ADDITION   
   
OWNER/APPLICANT: Bachman Enterprises, Inc., Attn: Brad Bachman, 4647 North 

Meridian, Wichita, KS 67204  
 
SURVEYOR/AGENT: Baughman Company, P.A., Attn: Kris Rose, 315 Ellis, Wichita, KS 

67211  
 

LOCATION: North of 45th Street North (extended), East side of Meridian 
(District VI)  

 
SITE SIZE:   4.64 acres  
 
NUMBER OF LOTS 
 Residential:  2  
            Office:   
 Commercial:         
 Industrial:  __ 
 Total:   2 
 
MINIMUM LOT AREA: 1.77 acres   
 
CURRENT ZONING:  SF-5 Single-Family Residential, LC Limited Commercial  
 
PROPOSED ZONING:        Same 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
VICINITY MAP 
 

 

44



SUB2015-00006 – Plat of HARBOR ISLE 4TH ADDITION 
June 18, 2015 - Page 2 
  
NOTE:  This is an unplatted site located within the City of Wichita in addition to a portion of 
Harbor Isle 3rd Addition.   
 
STAFF COMMENTS:   
 
A. City of Wichita Public Works and Utilities Department advises that water and sewer services 

are available to serve the site.  Transmission and distribution fees are due on water.   
 
B. Environmental Health Division advises that if the recreational facilities in the reserves include 

restrooms, the appropriate sanitary treatment arrangements will be needed, either pump out 
sumps, septic system and field, or connection to sanitary sewer.  Any wells installed on the 
property will have to be properly permitted and inspected.  

 
C. City Stormwater Management has approved the applicant’s drainage plan. 
 
D. The plat denotes complete access control along Meridian.  Traffic Engineering has approved 

the access controls. 
 
E. As the plat consists of commercial lots abutting a non-arterial street, the Subdivision 

regulations require a sidewalk along the Driftwood street frontage.  A guarantee shall be 
submitted or a Sidewalk Certificate in lieu of a guarantee may be provided. The applicant will 
be providing a restrictive covenant which limits the property to SF-5 uses, which negates the 
requirement for a Sidewalk Certificate.     

 
F. Provisions shall be made for ownership and maintenance of the proposed reserves.  The 

applicant shall either form a lot owners’ association prior to recording the plat or shall submit 
a restrictive covenant stating when the association will be formed, when the reserves will be 
deeded to the association and who is to own and maintain the reserves prior to the 
association taking over those responsibilities. 

 
G. For those reserves being platted for drainage purposes, the required covenant that provides 

for ownership and maintenance of the reserves, shall grant to the appropriate governing body 
the authority to maintain the drainage reserves in the event the owner(s) fail to do so.  The 
covenant shall provide for the cost of such maintenance to be charged back to the owner(s) 
by the governing body. 

 
H. The Subdivision regulations discourage the inclusion of pipeline easements within residential 

lots.  It is recommended that the pipeline crossing the plat be included within a Reserve, or in 
the alternative a restrictive covenant provided identifying the pipeline easement. 

 
I. County Surveying has contacted the plat surveyor and all comments have been addressed 

and corrected. 
 
J. The Applicant is reminded that a platting binder is required with the final plat.  Approval of this 

plat will be subject to submittal of this binder and any relevant conditions found by such a 
review. 

 
K. The plattor’s text shall include language that a drainage plan has been developed for the plat 

and that all drainage easements, rights-of-way, or reserves shall remain at established 
grades or as modified with the approval of the applicable City or County Engineer and 
unobstructed to allow for the conveyance of stormwater.  

 

45



SUB2015-00006 – Plat of HARBOR ISLE 4TH ADDITION 
June 18, 2015 - Page 3 
  
L. The applicant shall install or guarantee the installation of all utilities and facilities that are 

applicable and described in Article 8 of the MAPC Subdivision Regulations.  (Water service 
and fire hydrants required by Article 8 for fire protection shall be as per the direction and 
approval of the Chief of the Fire Department.) 

 
M. The Register of Deeds requires all names to be printed beneath the signatures on the plat 

and any associated documents.  
 
N. Prior to development of the plat, the applicant is advised to meet with the United States 

Postal Service Growth Management Coordinator (Phone:  316-946-4556) in order to receive 
mail delivery without delay, avoid unnecessary expense and determine the type of delivery 
and the tentative mailbox locations. 

 
O. The applicant is advised that various State and Federal requirements (specifically but not 

limited to the Army Corps of Engineers, Kanopolis Project Office, Route 1, Box 317, Valley 
Center, KS 67147) for the control of soil and wind erosion and the protection of wetlands may 
impact how this site can be developed.  It is the applicant’s responsibility to contact all 
appropriate agencies to determine any such requirements. 

 
P. The owner of the subdivision should note that any construction that results in earthwork 

activities that will disturb one acre or more of ground cover requires a Federal/State National 
Pollutant Discharge Elimination System Stormwater Discharge Permit from the Kansas 
Department of Health and Environment in Topeka.  Also, for projects located within the City 
of Wichita, erosion and sediment control devices must be used on ALL projects.  For projects 
outside of the City of Wichita, but within the Wichita metropolitan area, the owner should 
contact the appropriate governmental jurisdiction concerning erosion and sediment control 
device requirements. 

 
Q. Perimeter closure computations shall be submitted with the final plat tracing. 
 

   R. Westar Energy advises that Heide Bryan, Subdivision Representative, will be the contact for 
this project.  She can be reached at 316-261-6554 with questions and information or to start 
this project when the time comes.  Any and all relocation and removal of any existing 
equipment made necessary by this plat will be at the applicant’s expense.     

 
   S. A compact disk (CD) should be provided, which will be used by the City and County GIS 

Departments, detailing the final plat in digital format in AutoCAD.  Please include the name of 
the plat on the disk.  If a disk is not provided, please send the information via e-mail to Kathy 
Wilson (e-mail address:  kwilson@wichita.gov).   

 

46



 

 

METROPOLITAN AREA PLANNING COMMISSION  AGENDA ITEM NO. 2-3 
         June 18, 2015 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
CASE NUMBER: SUB2015-00010 – SPRING ACRES ESTATES ADDITION   
   
OWNER/APPLICANT: Spring Acres Estates, LLC, 33000 West 21st Street, Garden Plain, 

KS 67050 
 
SURVEYOR/AGENT: Baughman Company, Attn: Kris Rose, 315 Ellis, Wichita, KS 

67211  
 

LOCATION: South side of 21st Street North, West side of 327th Street West 
(County District III)  

 
SITE SIZE:   45.65 acres  
 
NUMBER OF LOTS 
 Residential:  15 
            Office:   
 Commercial:         
 Industrial:  __ 
 Total:   15 
 
MINIMUM LOT AREA: 1.96 acres   
 
CURRENT ZONING:  RR Rural Residential  
 
PROPOSED ZONING:        Same 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
VICINITY MAP  
 

 

47



SUB2015-00010 – Plat of SPRING ACRES ESTATES ADDITION 
June 18, 2015 - Page 2 
 

 

NOTE:  This is unplatted property located in the County in an area designated as “rural” by the 
Wichita-Sedgwick County Comprehensive Plan.  This final plat consists of the north portion of 
the overall preliminary plat approved for the site and represents the first phase of development.  
The plat is consistent with the preliminary plat in regards to lot configuration and street layout. 
 
STAFF COMMENTS:   
 
A. Since neither sanitary sewer nor municipal water is available to serve this property, the 

applicant shall contact Metropolitan Area Building and Construction Department to find out 
what tests may be necessary and what standards are to be met for approval of on-site 
sewerage and water wells.   

 
B. The plat denotes a lot under the two-acre minimum lot size requirement for the RR district.  

The zoning code permits a reduction in lot area for Lot 5, Block A due to the 21st Street North 
dedication of right-of-way.   

 
C. In conformance with the Urban Fringe Development Standards, for individual domestic wells 

that are proposed, a Safe Yield Analysis must be provided to Metropolitan Area Building and 
Construction Department to assure the availability of an adequate, safe supply of water that 
does not impair existing water rights.   

 
D. If improvements are guaranteed by petition(s), a notarized certificate listing the petition(s) 

shall be submitted to the Planning Department for recording. 
 
E. County Public Works has requested revisions to the drainage plan.  A Notice of Intent and a 

stormwater permit are needed.  The applicant proposes a temporary stormwater treatment 
facility in an off-site location.  The applicant and County need to meet to discuss proper 
covenants and easements required to manage the temporary facility and guarantee its 
relocation to the permanent location.  The plat shall include minimum building pad elevations 
for the lots in Block C. 

   
F. County Public Works has approved the access controls.  The plat proposes three openings 

along 21st Street North which includes two street openings; and complete access control 
along 327th Street West.   

 
G. Sedgwick County Fire Department advises that the plat will need to comply with the 

Sedgwick County Service Drive Code. 
 
H. The applicant shall guarantee the installation of the interior streets to the standard suburban 

gravel streets.   
 
I. Provisions shall be made for ownership and maintenance of the proposed reserves.  The 

applicant shall either form a lot owners’ association prior to recording the plat or shall submit 
a restrictive covenant stating when the association will be formed, when the reserves will be 
deeded to the association and who is to own and maintain the reserves prior to the 
association taking over those responsibilities. 

 

48



SUB2015-00010 – Plat of SPRING ACRES ESTATES ADDITION 
June 18, 2015 - Page 3 
 

 

J. For those reserves being platted for drainage purposes, the required covenant that provides 
for ownership and maintenance of the reserves, shall grant to the appropriate governing body 
the authority to maintain the drainage reserves in the event the owner(s) fail to do so.  The 
covenant shall provide for the cost of such maintenance to be charged back to the owner(s) 
by the governing body. 

 
K. In accordance with the Kansas Wetland Mapping Conventions under the Memorandum of 

Understanding between the United States Department of Agriculture - Natural Resources 
Conservation Service; United States Environmental Protection Agency; United States Army 
Corps of Engineers (USACE); and United States Fish and Wildlife Service, this site has been 
identified as one with potential wetland hydrology.  The USACE should be contacted (316-
322-8247) to have a wetland determination completed. 

 
L. County Surveying advises that 1407.00 feet on the last line of the legal description needs 

revised to 733.44. 
 
M. “Wichita, Sedgwick County” shall be replaced with “Sedgwick County” in the plattor’s text.  
 
N. GIS has approved the plat’s street names.  
 
O. County Surveying has contacted the plat surveyor and all comments have been addressed 

and corrected. 
 
P. The plattor’s text shall include language that a drainage plan has been developed for the plat 

and that all drainage easements, rights-of-way, or reserves shall remain at established 
grades or as modified with the approval of the applicable City or County Engineer and 
unobstructed to allow for the conveyance of stormwater.  

 
Q. The applicant shall install or guarantee the installation of all utilities and facilities that are 

applicable and described in Article 8 of the MAPC Subdivision Regulations.  (Water service 
and fire hydrants required by Article 8 for fire protection shall be as per the direction and 
approval of the Chief of the Fire Department.) 

 
R. The Register of Deeds requires all names to be printed beneath the signatures on the plat 

and any associated documents.  
 
S. Prior to development of the plat, the applicant is advised to meet with the United States 

Postal Service Growth Management Coordinator (Phone:  316-946-4556) in order to receive 
mail delivery without delay, avoid unnecessary expense and determine the type of delivery 
and the tentative mailbox locations. 

 
T. The applicant is advised that various State and Federal requirements (specifically but not 

limited to the Army Corps of Engineers, Kanopolis Project Office, Route 1, Box 317, Valley 
Center, KS 67147) for the control of soil and wind erosion and the protection of wetlands may 
impact how this site can be developed.  It is the applicant’s responsibility to contact all 
appropriate agencies to determine any such requirements. 

 

49



SUB2015-00010 – Plat of SPRING ACRES ESTATES ADDITION 
June 18, 2015 - Page 4 
 

 

  U. The owner of the subdivision should note that any construction that results in earthwork 
activities that will disturb one acre or more of ground cover requires a Federal/State National 
Pollutant Discharge Elimination System Stormwater Discharge Permit from the Kansas 
Department of Health and Environment in Topeka.  Also, for projects located within the City 
of Wichita, erosion and sediment control devices must be used on ALL projects.  For projects 
outside of the City of Wichita, but within the Wichita metropolitan area, the owner should 
contact the appropriate governmental jurisdiction concerning erosion and sediment control 
device requirements. 

 
  V. Perimeter closure computations shall be submitted with the final plat tracing. 
 
  W. This plat is outside the Westar Service Territory but has Westar transmission lines along or 

near the plat.  Westar Transmission Engineering area has contacted the agent for the 
applicant for construction plans and with other information.  Any removal or relocation of 
existing equipment of utility companies will be at the applicant’s expense.    

  
  X.  A compact disk (CD) should be provided, which will be used by the City and County GIS 

Departments, detailing the final plat in digital format in AutoCAD.  Please include the name of 
the plat on the disk.  If a disk is not provided, please send the information via e-mail to Kathy 
Wilson (e-mail address:  kwilson@wichita.gov).   

 

50



 
METROPOLITAN AREA PLANNING COMMISSION  AGENDA ITEM NO. 2-4 
         JUNE 18, 2015 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
CASE NUMBER: SUB2015-00016 – MONARCH LANDING COMMERCIAL 

ADDITION   
   
OWNER/APPLICANT: Monarch Landing Investments, LLC, Attn: Kevin Mullen, 8100 East 

22nd Street North, Building 1000, Wichita, KS 67226  
 
SURVEYOR/AGENT: Baughman Company, P.A., Attn: Kris Rose, 315 Ellis, Wichita, KS 

67211   
 

LOCATION: Northwest corner of 21st Street North and 159th Street East (District 
II)  

 
SITE SIZE:   18.12 acres  
 
NUMBER OF LOTS 
 Residential:   
            Office:   
 Commercial:  3       
 Industrial:  __ 
 Total:   3 
 
MINIMUM LOT AREA: 1.38 acres   
 
CURRENT ZONING:  SF-5 Single-Family Residential  
 
PROPOSED ZONING:        Limited Commercial 
____________________________________________________________________________ 
VICINITY MAP 
 

 
 
 
 

51



SUB 2015-00016 –Plat of MONARCH LANDING COMMERCIAL ADDITION 
June 18, 2015 - Page 2 
 
NOTE:  The site has been approved for a zone change (ZON2006-00045) from SF-5 Single-
Family Residential to LC Limited Commercial.  The Monarch Landing Community Unit Plan 
(CUP2006-00046, DP-303) was also approved for the site.  
 
STAFF COMMENTS:   
 
A. City of Wichita Public Works and Utilities Department advises that water and sewer are 

available.  Transmission and distribution fees are due on water.  Lateral fees are due on 
sewer.    

 
B. If improvements are guaranteed by petition(s), a notarized certificate listing the petition(s) 

shall be submitted to the Planning Department for recording. 
 
C. City Stormwater Management has approved the drainage plan.  
 
D. The plat proposes five access openings along 21st Street North including two rights-in/out 

openings and two access openings along 159th Street East.  Traffic Engineering has approved 
the access controls.  The applicant is reminded that the right-in/right-out openings need to 
have one-way signs placed on the median per the Manual on Uniform Traffic Control Devices 
(MUTCD). 

 
E. In accordance with the CUP, the applicant shall guarantee construction of left turn center 

lanes to all major entrances and decel lanes into all major entrances. 
 
F. As the plat consists of commercial lots abutting a non-arterial street, the Subdivision 

Regulations require a sidewalk along Flutter Lane.  A guarantee shall be submitted or a 
Sidewalk Certificate in lieu of a guarantee may be provided which states that the sidewalk will 
be installed within 30 days of a connecting sidewalk being placed on the north of Flutter.  

 
G. In accordance with the CUP approval, a cross-lot circulation agreement is needed to assure 

internal vehicular movement between the lots. 
 
H. The Applicant needs to request a CUP adjustment as the CUP parcel boundaries do not 

correspond with the area being platted.   
 
I. A note shall be placed on the final plat, indicating that this Addition is subject to the conditions 

of the Monarch Landing Community Unit Plan (CUP2006-00046, DP-303). 
 
J. A CUP Certificate shall be submitted to MAPD prior to City Council consideration, identifying 

the approved CUP and its special conditions for development on this property. 
 
K. The applicant shall submit a copy of the instrument which establishes the pipeline easements 

on the property, which verifies that the easements shown are sufficient and that utilities may 
be located adjacent to and within the easements.  Any relocation, lowering or encasement of 
the pipeline, required by this development, will not be at the expense of the appropriate 
governing body. 

 
L. The applicant’s agent shall determine any setback requirements for the pipelines by 

researching the text of the pipeline agreements. If a setback from the pipeline easements is 
provided for in the pipeline easement agreements, it shall be indicated on the face of the plat. 

 
M. The plattor’s text shall reference, “an addition to Wichita, Sedgwick County, Kansas”.  

52



SUB 2015-00016 –Plat of MONARCH LANDING COMMERCIAL ADDITION 
June 18, 2015 - Page 3 
 
N. City Environmental Health Division advises that any wells installed on the property for 

irrigation purposes will have to be properly permitted and inspected.  
 
O. County Surveying has contacted the plat surveyor and all comments have been addressed 

and corrected. 
 
P. The plattor’s text shall include language that a drainage plan has been developed for the plat 

and that all drainage easements, rights-of-way, or reserves shall remain at established grades 
or as modified with the approval of the applicable City or County Engineer and unobstructed to 
allow for the conveyance of stormwater.  

 
Q. The applicant shall install or guarantee the installation of all utilities and facilities that are 

applicable and described in Article 8 of the MAPC Subdivision Regulations.  (Water service 
and fire hydrants required by Article 8 for fire protection shall be as per the direction and 
approval of the Chief of the Fire Department.) 

 
R. The Register of Deeds requires all names to be printed beneath the signatures on the plat and 

any associated documents.  
 
S. Prior to development of the plat, the applicant is advised to meet with the United States Postal 

Service Growth Management Coordinator (Phone:  316-946-4556) in order to receive mail 
delivery without delay, avoid unnecessary expense and determine the type of delivery and the 
tentative mailbox locations. 

 
T. The applicant is advised that various State and Federal requirements (specifically but not 

limited to the Army Corps of Engineers, Kanopolis Project Office, Route 1, Box 317, Valley 
Center, KS 67147) for the control of soil and wind erosion and the protection of wetlands may 
impact how this site can be developed.  It is the applicant’s responsibility to contact all 
appropriate agencies to determine any such requirements. 

 
  U. The owner of the subdivision should note that any construction that results in earthwork 

activities that will disturb one acre or more of ground cover requires a Federal/State National 
Pollutant Discharge Elimination System Stormwater Discharge Permit from the Kansas 
Department of Health and Environment in Topeka.  Also, for projects located within the City of 
Wichita, erosion and sediment control devices must be used on ALL projects.  For projects 
outside of the City of Wichita, but within the Wichita metropolitan area, the owner should 
contact the appropriate governmental jurisdiction concerning erosion and sediment control 
device requirements. 

 
  V. Perimeter closure computations shall be submitted with the final plat tracing. 
 

   W. Any removal or relocation of existing equipment of utility companies will be at the applicant’s 
expense.    

  
   X. A compact disk (CD) should be provided, which will be used by the City and County GIS 

Departments, detailing the final plat in digital format in AutoCAD.  Please include the name of 
the plat on the disk.  If a disk is not provided, please send the information via e-mail to Kathy 
Wilson (e-mail address:  kwilson@wichita.gov).   

 

53



 
 
  AGENDA REPORT NO.  3-1 
METROPOLITAN AREA PLANNING COMMISSION June 18, 2015 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
CASE NUMBER: VAC2015-00018 - City request to vacate a portion of a platted utility easement    

OWNER/APPLICANT: Dan & Katie Harmon (owners/applicants) 
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: Generally described as vacating the 10 feet of the platted 20-foot wide utility 

easement located on Lot 30, Block 1, Smithmoor First Addition, Wichita, Sedgwick 
County, Kansas. 

LOCATION: Generally located midway between Webb and Greenwich Roads, south of Harry 
Street, west of Smithmoor Street on the south end of Countryside Circle (WCC #II) 

  
REASON FOR REQUEST: Room addition    
 
CURRENT ZONING: The site and all abutting and adjacent properties are zoned SF-5 Single-Family 

Residential (SF-5) zoned properties.     
VICINITY MAP: 
 

 
 
 
 
 
 

54



VAC2015-00018 – Request to vacate a portion of a platted utility easement   
June 18, 2015 
Page 2  
 
 
 

 
 

The applicants propose to vacate the south 10-foot half of the of the platted 20-foot utility easement, split in half by 
the common interior property line of Lot 30 (subject property) and Lot 29, all in Block 1, Smithmoor First Addition.  
The subject easement also abuts a platted 20-foot utility easement located on its west side, which has a sewer line 
located in it, and Countryside Circle, a public street, on the east.  The vacation request will not impact the sewer line.  
The vacation request will not encroach into the Unified Zoning Code’s SF-5 Single-Family Residential zoned 6-foot 
interior side yard setback.  There are no utilities located in the subject easement.  The Smithmoor First Addition was 
recorded with the Register of Deeds September 23, 1986.   
 
Based upon information available prior to the public hearing and reserving the right to make recommendations based 
on subsequent comments from City Traffic, Public Works/Water & Sewer/Stormwater, Fire, franchised utility 
representatives and other interested parties, Planning Staff has listed the following considerations (but not limited 
to) associated with the request to vacate the described portion of a platted utility easement. 
 

A. That after being duly and fully informed as to fully understand the true nature of this petition and the propriety 
of granting the same, the MAPC makes the following findings: 

 
1. That due and legal notice has been given by publication as required by law, in the Wichita Eagle, of 

notice of this vacation proceeding one time May 28, 2015, which was at least 20 days prior to this 
public hearing. 
 

2. That no private rights will be injured or endangered by vacating the described portion of the platted 
utility easement and that the public will suffer no loss or inconvenience thereby. 

 
3. In justice to the petitioner, the prayer of the petition ought to be granted. 

 
Conditions (but not limited to) associated with the request: 
 

(1)  Vacate the south 10-foot half of the of the platted 20-foot utility easement located in Lot 30, Block 1, 
Smithmoor First Addition. 

 
(2) Provide Planning with a legal description of the vacated portion of the platted utility easement on a Word 

document that can be used on the Vacation Order.  This must be provided to the Planning Department prior 
to this case going to City Council for final action.  
 

(3) Per MAPC Policy Statement #7, all conditions are to be completed within one year of approval by the MAPC 
or the vacation request will be considered null and void.  All vacation requests are not complete until the 
Wichita City Council or the Sedgwick County Board of County Commissioners have taken final action on 
the request and the vacation order and all required documents have been provided to the City, County and/or 
franchised utilities and the necessary documents have been recorded with the Register of Deeds.  

 
 
SUBDIVISION COMMITTEE’S RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
The Subdivision Committee recommends approval subject to the following conditions: 

55



VAC2015-00018 – Request to vacate a portion of a platted utility easement   
June 18, 2015 
Page 3  
 
 
 

 
 

(1) Vacate the south 10-foot half of the of the platted 20-foot utility easement located in Lot 30, Block 1, 
Smithmoor First Addition. 

 
(2) Provide Planning with a legal description of the vacated portion of the platted utility easement on a Word 

document that can be used on the Vacation Order.  This must be provided to the Planning Department prior 
to this case going to City Council for final action.  
 

(3) Per MAPC Policy Statement #7, all conditions are to be completed within one year of approval by the MAPC 
or the vacation request will be considered null and void.  All vacation requests are not complete until the 
Wichita City Council or the Sedgwick County Board of County Commissioners have taken final action on 
the request and the vacation order and all required documents have been provided to the City, County and/or 
franchised utilities and the necessary documents have been recorded with the Register of Deeds.  

 
 

56



  AGENDA ITEM NO.   3-2  
METROPOLITAN AREA PLANNING COMMISSION June 18, 2015 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
CASE NUMBER: VAC2015-00019 - City request to vacate a platted alley    
 
APPLICANT/AGENT: Wichita High LLC, Marketplace Properties LLC, United Methodist Open Door, 

Chestnut Properties, Pixius Communications LLC, Coordinated Systems & 
Supplies Inc, David Burke, and Deborah J & David Burke (applicants)    

 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: Generally described as vacating the platted 20-foot wide alley abutting Lots 65-43 

(odd, Emporia Avenue side), Lots 66-44 (even, was Fourth Avenue now St. Francis 
Avenue side), the north side of 2nd Street, the south side of 3rd Street, all in the JR 
Mead Addition, Wichita, Sedgwick County, Kansas. 

 
LOCATION: Generally located between Emporia Avenue - 3rd Street - St Francis Avenue -2nd 

Street (WCC VI) 
  
REASON FOR REQUEST: Future development     
 
CURRENT ZONING: The subject site is platted alley right-of-way.  All abutting and adjacent properties 

are zoned CBD Central Business District (CBD)      
 
VICINITY MAP: 
 

 
 

 
 

57



VAC2015-00019 – Request to vacate a platted alley    
June 18, 2015  
Page 2 
 
 
 

 
 

The applicant is requesting the vacation of the paved, platted 20-foot wide alley right-of-way (ROW), abutting Lots 
65-43 (odd, Emporia Avenue side), Lots 66-44 (even, was Fourth Avenue now St. Francis Avenue side), the north 
side of 2nd Street, the south side of 3rd Street, all in the JR Mead Addition.  There is a sewer line and manholes, 
stormwater equipment and power poles and lines located in the alley.  No property will be denied access to public 
street right-of-way if the vacation is approved.  All of the abutting property owners have signed the 
application/petition to vacate the alley.  The JR Mead Addition was recorded with the Register of Deeds September 
26, 1870.   
 
Based upon information available prior to the public hearing and reserving the right to make recommendations based 
on subsequent comments from City Traffic, Public Works/Water & Sewer/Stormwater, Fire, franchised utility 
representatives and other interested parties, Planning Staff has listed the following considerations (but not limited 
to) associated with the request to vacate the described platted alley. 
 

A. That after being duly and fully informed as to fully understand the true nature of this petition and the propriety 
of granting the same, the MAPC makes the following findings: 

 
1. That due and legal notice has been given by publication as required by law, in the Wichita Eagle, of 

notice of this vacation proceeding one time May 28, 2015, which was at least 20 days prior to this 
public hearing. 
 

2. That no private rights will be injured or endangered by vacating the described platted alley and that 
the public will suffer no loss or inconvenience thereby. 

 
3. In justice to the petitioner, the prayer of the petition ought to be granted. 

 
Conditions (but not limited to) associated with the request: 
 

(1) Dedicate a 20-foot wide utility-drainage easement by separate instrument, for the length of the platted vacated 
alley, prior to the case going to City Council for final action and subsequent recording with the Vacation 
Order at the Register of Deeds.  
 

(2) Provide restrictive covenants (with original signatures) binding and tying the vacated described alley right-
of-way to the abutting properties.  This will go with the Vacation Order to City Council for final action and 
subsequent recording with the Register of Deeds and the Appraiser’s Office.  
 

(3) Provide a legal description of the vacated alley ROW, on a Word document, via E-Mail, to Planning, prior 
to the case going to City Council for final action and subsequent recording with the Register of Deeds. 

 
(4) All improvements shall be according to City Standards and at the applicant’s expense.  If needed, provide 

required guarantees or approved projects to ensure relocation and/or relocation of utilities, including, but not 
limited to, sewer lines and manholes, stormwater equipment, all franchise utilities and continuation of curb 
and gutter.  All provided prior to the vacation case going to City Council for final action.    
 

58



VAC2015-00019 – Request to vacate a platted alley    
June 18, 2015  
Page 3 
 
 
 

 
 

(5) Any relocation or reconstruction of utilities, made necessary by this vacation shall be the responsibility of 
the applicants and at the applicants’ expense.   
 

(6) Per MAPC Policy Statement #7, all conditions are to be completed within one year of approval by the MAPC 
or the vacation request will be considered null and void.  All vacation requests are not complete until the 
Wichita City Council or the Sedgwick County Board of County Commissioners have taken final action on 
the request and the vacation order and all required documents have been provided to the City, County and/or 
franchised utilities and the necessary documents have been recorded with the Register of Deeds. 

 
SUBDIVISION COMMITTEE’S RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
The Subdivision Committee recommends approval subject to the following conditions: 
 

(1) Dedicate a 20-foot wide utility-drainage easement by separate instrument, for the length of the platted vacated 
alley, prior to the case going to City Council for final action and subsequent recording with the Vacation 
Order at the Register of Deeds.  
 

(2) Provide restrictive covenants (with original signatures) binding and tying the vacated described alley right-
of-way to the abutting properties.  This will go with the Vacation Order to City Council for final action and 
subsequent recording with the Register of Deeds and the Appraiser’s Office.  
 

(3) Provide a legal description of the vacated alley ROW, on a Word document, via E-Mail, to Planning, prior 
to the case going to City Council for final action and subsequent recording with the Register of Deeds. 

 
(4) All improvements shall be according to City Standards and at the applicant’s expense.  If needed, provide 

required guarantees or approved projects to ensure relocation and/or relocation of utilities, including, but not 
limited to, sewer lines and manholes, stormwater equipment, all franchise utilities and continuation of curb 
and gutter.  All provided prior to the vacation case going to City Council for final action.    
 

(5) Any relocation or reconstruction of utilities, made necessary by this vacation shall be the responsibility of 
the applicants and at the applicants’ expense.   
 

(6) Per MAPC Policy Statement #7, all conditions are to be completed within one year of approval by the MAPC 
or the vacation request will be considered null and void.  All vacation requests are not complete until the 
Wichita City Council or the Sedgwick County Board of County Commissioners have taken final action on 
the request and the vacation order and all required documents have been provided to the City, County and/or 
franchised utilities and the necessary documents have been recorded with the Register of Deeds. 

 
 
 

59



 
 
 
   AGENDA REPORT NO.   3-3  
METROPOLITAN AREA PLANNING COMMISSION June 18, 2015 
 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
CASE NUMBER: VAC2015-00020 - City request to vacate a portion of platted complete access 

control  
 
APPLICANT/AGENT: Timothy J Buchanan Revocable Trust (applicant/owner) Baughman Company, PA, 

c/o Phil Meyer (agent) 
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: Generally described as vacating a portion of the south 404.41 feet of the platted 

complete access control of Reserve C, the Ranch Addition to permit two drives onto 
159th Street East off of Lot 33, Block A, the Ranch Addition, Wichita, Sedgwick 
County, Kansas. 

 
LOCATION: Generally located midway between 13th and 21st Streets North on the west side of 

159th Street East (WCC II) 
 
REASON FOR REQUEST: To allow two drive onto 159th Street East  
 
CURRENT ZONING: The site and all abutting west and north properties are zoned SF-5 Single-family 

Residential (SF-5).  Abutting south property is a rails to trails zoned SF-20 Single-
Family Residential (SF-20).  Adjacent east property, across 159th Street East, is 
located in the city of Andover, Butler County   

 
VICINITY MAP: 
 

 
 

60



VAC2015-00020 Request to vacate a portion of platted complete access control 
June 18, 2015 
Page 2 
 

 
 

 
The applicant proposes to vacate the platted access control along the south 404.41 feet of Reserve C, the Ranch 
Addition to permit two drives onto159th Street East off of the 6.1-acre Lot 33, Block A, the Ranch Addition.  As 
platted this portion of Reserve C is permitted one drive onto 159th Street East.  As platted this portion of Reserve C 
is owned by a Home Owners Association (HOA).  The owners of Reserve C (HOA) and Lot 33, Block A, all in the 
Ranch Addition have signed the application/petition.  159th Street East is a County/Township paved two-lane arterial 
at this location.  Basswood Drive, a public street located in a residential subdivision in the city of Andover, is located 
across 159th Street East from the north portion of Reserve C; there are no other points of access onto 159th Street 
East from east side of 159th.  The current Subdivision standard for a right-in – right-out drive is 200 feet between 
drives or arterial intersections and 400 feet between full movement drives or arterial intersections.  Per the 
Subdivision Regulations, 10-104, Modification of Design Criteria, the MAPC may modify design criteria.  In the 
past staff has recommended modified design criteria, which has been approved by the MAPC.  There may be 
hydrants, water lines and valves located in the area of the vacation.  Comments from franchised utilities have not 
been received and are needed to determine if they have utilities located within the described area of the vacation 
request.  The Ranch Addition was recorded with the Register of Deeds December 13, 2013.   
 
Based upon information available prior to the public hearing and reserving the right to make recommendations based 
on subsequent comments from City Traffic, Public Works/Water & Sewer/Stormwater, Fire, franchised utility 
representatives and other interested parties, Planning Staff has listed the following considerations (but not limited 
to) associated with the request to vacate the described portion of platted complete access control. 
 

A. That after being duly and fully informed as to fully understand the true nature of this petition and the propriety 
of granting the same, the MAPC makes the following findings: 

 
1. That due and legal notice has been given by publication as required by law, in the Wichita Eagle, of 

notice of this vacation proceeding one time May 28, 2015, which was at least 20 days prior to this 
public hearing. 
 

2. That no private rights will be injured or endangered by vacating the described portion platted complete 
access control and that the public will suffer no loss or inconvenience thereby. 

 
3. In justice to the petitioner, the prayer of the petition ought to be granted. 

 
Conditions (but not limited to) associated with the request: 
 

(1) Per the approval of the Traffic Engineer, vacate the platted complete access control to allow one additional 
drive onto 159th Street East along the south 404.41 feet of Reserve C, the Ranch Addition for Lot 33, Block 
A, the Ranch Addition.  Provide a dedication of access control allowing two drives, with original signatures, 
to Planning Staff prior to the case going to Council for final action.      
 

(2) Provide Planning Staff with a legal description of the approved vacated portion of the platted complete access 
control on a Word document, via e-mail, to be used on the Vacation Order.  This must be provided prior to 
the request proceeds to City Council for final action and subsequent recording with the Vacation Order at the 
Register of Deeds.      

 

61



VAC2015-00020 Request to vacate a portion of platted complete access control 
June 18, 2015 
Page 3 
 

 
 

(3) Any relocation or reconstruction of utilities made necessary by this vacation shall be the responsibility of the 
applicants and at the applicants’ expense.  Westar has utilities located in the area of the vacation request. 
Provide all needed plans for review and approval by utilities.  Provide Planning with any plans as approved 
by the utilities. This must be provided to Planning prior to the case going to Council for final action. 
 

(4) Westar has utilities located in the area of the vacation request and will need an easement to cover those 
utilities.  Provide any needed easement for Westar.  Provide Planning with Westar’s approval prior to the 
case going to Council for final action. 

 
(5) All improvements shall be according to City Standards and at the applicant’s expense. 

 
(6) Per MAPC Policy Statement #7, all conditions are to be completed within one year of approval by the MAPC  

or the vacation request will be considered null and void.  All vacation requests are not complete until the         
Wichita City Council or the Sedgwick County Board of County Commissioners have taken final action on 
the request and the vacation order and all required documents have been provided to the City, County and/or 
franchised utilities and the necessary documents have been recorded with the Register of Deeds. 

 
SUBDIVISION COMMITTEE’S RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
The Subdivision Committee recommends approval subject to the following conditions: 
 

(1) Per the approval of the Traffic Engineer, vacate the platted complete access control to allow one additional 
drive onto 159th Street East along the south 404.41 feet of Reserve C, the Ranch Addition for Lot 33, Block 
A, the Ranch Addition.  Provide a dedication of access control allowing two drives, with original signatures, 
to Planning Staff prior to the case going to Council for final action.      
 

(2) Provide Planning Staff with a legal description of the approved vacated portion of the platted complete access 
control on a Word document, via e-mail, to be used on the Vacation Order.  This must be provided prior to 
the request proceeds to City Council for final action and subsequent recording with the Vacation Order at the 
Register of Deeds.      

 
(3) Any relocation or reconstruction of utilities made necessary by this vacation shall be the responsibility of the 

applicants and at the applicants’ expense.  Westar has utilities located in the area of the vacation request. 
Provide all needed plans for review and approval by utilities.  Provide Planning with any plans as approved 
by the utilities. This must be provided to Planning prior to the case going to Council for final action. 
 

(4) Westar has utilities located in the area of the vacation request and will need an easement to cover those 
utilities.  Provide any needed easement for Westar.  Provide Planning with Westar’s approval prior to the 
case going to Council for final action. 

 
(5) All improvements shall be according to City Standards and at the applicant’s expense. 

 

62



VAC2015-00020 Request to vacate a portion of platted complete access control 
June 18, 2015 
Page 4 
 

 
 

(6) Per MAPC Policy Statement #7, all conditions are to be completed within one year of approval by the MAPC 
or the vacation request will be considered null and void.  All vacation requests are not complete until the          
Wichita City Council or the Sedgwick County Board of County Commissioners have taken final action on 
the request and the vacation order and all required documents have been provided to the City, County and/or 
franchised utilities and the necessary documents have been recorded with the Register of Deeds. 

 

63



 
 
  AGENDA REPORT NO.   3-4 
METROPOLITAN AREA PLANNING COMMISSION June 18, 2015 

 
 

STAFF REPORT 
 
CASE NUMBER: VAC2015-00021 - City request to vacate portions of platted utility easements    
 
OWNER/AGENT: Costco Wholesale (owner) Olsson Associates c/o Brett Lauritsen (agent) 
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION: Generally described as vacating the west 164 feet of the platted east-west 20-foot 

wide utility easement beginning where it abuts Webb Road and the platted curved 
north-south 10-foot wide utility easement from where it abuts Webb Road to its 
intersection with the noted platted east-west 20-foot wide utility easement, all in Lot 
1, Block 1, Costco Wholesale Addition, Wichita, Sedgwick County, Kansas. 

 
LOCATION: Generally located on the northeast corner of Webb Road and Kellogg Street (WCC 

#II) 
  
REASON FOR REQUEST: Relocation of utilities    
 
CURRENT ZONING: The site and the abutting north and east properties are zoned LI Limited Industrial 

(LI).  Adjacent west and south properties (across Webb Road and Kellogg Street) 
are zoned LC Limited Commercial (LC) and GC General Commercial (GC).     

VICINITY MAP: 
 

 
 
 
 

64



VAC2015-00021 – Request to vacate portions of platted utility easements   
June 18, 2015 
Page 2  
 
 
 

 
 

The applicant propose to vacate the west 164 feet of the platted east-west 20-foot wide utility easement beginning 
where it abuts Webb Road and the platted curved north-south 10-foot wide utility easement from where it abuts 
Webb Road to its intersection with the noted platted east-west 20-foot wide utility easement, all in Lot1, Block 1, 
Costco Wholesale Addition.    The vacation is part of the relocation of utilities.  The applicant has a proposed 
easement to cover the relocated utilities.  Comments from franchised utilities have not been received and are needed 
to determine if they have utilities located within the subject easement.  The Costco Wholesale Addition  
was recorded with the Register of Deeds November 26, 2014.   
 
Based upon information available prior to the public hearing and reserving the right to make recommendations based 
on subsequent comments from City Traffic, Public Works/Water & Sewer/Stormwater, Fire, franchised utility 
representatives and other interested parties, Planning Staff has listed the following considerations (but not limited 
to) associated with the request to vacate the described platted utility easements. 
 

A. That after being duly and fully informed as to fully understand the true nature of this petition and the propriety 
of granting the same, the MAPC makes the following findings: 

 
1. That due and legal notice has been given by publication as required by law, in the Wichita Eagle, of 

notice of this vacation proceeding one time May 28, 2015, which was at least 20 days prior to this 
public hearing. 
 

2. That no private rights will be injured or endangered by vacating the described portions of platted 
utility easements and that the public will suffer no loss or inconvenience thereby. 

 
3. In justice to the petitioner, the prayer of the petition ought to be granted. 

 
Conditions (but not limited to) associated with the request: 
 

(1) Abandonment or relocation/reconstruction of any/all utilities, made necessary by this vacation shall be to 
City Standards and shall be the responsibility and at the expense of the applicant.  As needed provide an 
approved private project plan number for the abandonment /relocation of public utilities.  As needed provide 
approval from franchised utilities for the relocation of franchised utilities.  All to be provided to the Planning 
Department prior to this case going to City Council for final action.  
 

(2) Provide Planning with any needed easements, with original signatures, for relocated utilities, prior to this 
case going to City Council for final action and subsequent recording with the Vacation Order at the register 
of Deeds.  
 

(3) Provide Planning with a legal description of the vacated portion of the platted utility easement on a Word 
document via E-mail that can be used on the Vacation Order.  This must be provided to the Planning 
Department prior to this case going to City Council for final action.  
 

65



VAC2015-00021 – Request to vacate portions of platted utility easements   
June 18, 2015 
Page 3  
 
 
 

 
 

(4) Per MAPC Policy Statement #7, all conditions are to be completed within one year of approval by the MAPC 
or the vacation request will be considered null and void.  All vacation requests are not complete until the 
Wichita City Council or the Sedgwick County Board of County Commissioners have taken final action on 
the request and the vacation order and all required documents have been provided to the City, County and/or 
franchised utilities and the necessary documents have been recorded with the Register of Deeds.  

 
SUBDIVISION COMMITTEE’S RECOMMENDED ACTION 
 
The Subdivision Committee recommends approval subject to the following conditions: 
 

(1) Abandonment or relocation/reconstruction of any/all utilities, made necessary by this vacation shall be to 
City Standards and shall be the responsibility and at the expense of the applicant.  As needed provide an 
approved private project plan number for the abandonment /relocation of public utilities.  As needed provide 
approval from franchised utilities for the relocation of franchised utilities.  All to be provided to the Planning 
Department prior to this case going to City Council for final action.  
 

(2) Provide Planning with any needed easements, with original signatures, for relocated utilities, prior to this 
case going to City Council for final action and subsequent recording with the Vacation Order at the register 
of Deeds.  
 

(3) Provide Planning with a legal description of the vacated portion of the platted utility easement on a Word 
document via E-mail that can be used on the Vacation Order.  This must be provided to the Planning 
Department prior to this case going to City Council for final action.  
 

(4) Per MAPC Policy Statement #7, all conditions are to be completed within one year of approval by the MAPC 
or the vacation request will be considered null and void.  All vacation requests are not complete until the 
Wichita City Council or the Sedgwick County Board of County Commissioners have taken final action on 
the request and the vacation order and all required documents have been provided to the City, County and/or 
franchised utilities and the necessary documents have been recorded with the Register of Deeds.  

 

66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77


	Agenda
	May 7, 2015
	DRAFT May 7, 2015 MAPC Minutes

	SUB2015-00005
	SUB2015 05 -MAPC Staff Rpt -Slades Second ADD

	SUB2015-00006
	SUB2015 06 -MAPC Staff Rpt -Harbor Isle 4th ADD

	SUB2015-00010
	SUB2015 10 -MAPC Staff Rpt -Spring Acres Estates ADD

	SUB2015-00016
	SUB2015 16 -MAPC Staff Rpt -Monarch Landing Commercial ADD

	VAC2015-00018
	VAC2015 18 -MAPC Staff Rpt

	VAC2015-00019
	VAC2015 19 -MAPC Staff Rpt

	VAC2015-00020
	VAC2015 20 -MAPC Staff Rpt

	VAC2015-00021
	VAC2015 21 -MAPC Staff Rpt

	CON2015-00020
	CON2015-00020 Staff Report and Site Plans, etc


